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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Gateway Area Development District 
Morehead, Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Gateway Area Development District (the 
District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Gateway Area Development District, as of June 30, 2018, and the change in 
financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, and the pension and OPEB schedules on pages 3–6, and 29-32 are presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Gateway Area Development District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying 
other supplemental schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary grant schedules and the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 28,
2018 on our consideration of Gateway Area Development District’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Gateway Area 
Development District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

RFH, PLLC
Lexington, Kentucky 
September 28, 2018
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Gateway Area Development District (GADD) is a governmental non-profit corporation formed pursuant to Kentucky 
Revised Statutes (KRS) Chapter 147A.  One of fifteen statewide Area Development Districts established in 1969, 
its mission is basic: to bring local civic and governmental leaders together to accomplish major objectives and take 
advantage of opportunities which cannot be achieved or realized by those governments acting alone. It also serves 
as a focal point of a necessary federal-state-Iocal partnership for improvement of the quality of life in the region 
and the Commonwealth. GADD serves as a forum, clearinghouse, technical center, and a convener for the five-
county area of Bath, Menifee, Montgomery, Morgan, and Rowan counties. As outlined in KRS, the ADD acts as 
the planning and administrative entity for the region.

GADD is governed by a Board of Directors comprised of elected officials from the counties and communities within 
the District, as well as non-elected citizen members representing a cross-section of the region’s social and 
economic institutions.   The office is managed by an Executive Director who reports directly to the Board.  Office 
staff reports to the Executive Director.

GADD is also recognized by the Internal Revenue Service as "Gateway Area Development District, Inc." - a 
501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization determined eligible to receive tax-deductible contributions. Due to massive 
destruction caused by the March 2, 2012 storms and tornados in its region, GADD Inc. currently serves as the 
fiscal agent for the Morgan County Tornado Relief Fund.

This discussion and analysis narrative provides an overview of GADD's financial performance during the 2018 
fiscal year, as compared to the prior fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. Please read the following in conjunction with 
the audited financial statements and the accompanying notes.

OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report includes the management’s discussion and analysis, the independent auditors’ report, GADD’s 
audited financial statements, and notes to the financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements explain 
in detail some of the information in the financial statements.

REQUIRED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GADD's financial statements utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Also, the financial statements conform to 
generally accepted accounting principles and guidelines set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board.  GADD is a single fund, special-purpose entity that provides regional planning, development and aging 
services to the city, county and nonprofit agencies within the five county areas.  As such, the entity-wide financial 
statements include a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, 
and a statement of cash flows.  These statements display information about the entity as a whole.

GADD does not utilize multiple funds in accounting for its financial activities; therefore, fund type statements are 
not presented.  The Statement of Net Position details GADD’s investments (assets) and debt (liabilities) and is 
very similar to the balance sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position details 
revenue classified by source and expenditures by object for separate fiscal years and also takes into account 
adjustments, if any, for prior year events.

GADD’s FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The enclosed financial statements reflect the overall financial condition of GADD for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018 as summarized in the following table.
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Condensed Statement of Net Position

FY 2018                          FY 2017  

Current assets $     2,532,687 $     2,367,196

Notes receivable, long term 247,455 306,848

Capital assets 816,140 850,557

Amortized assets 10,494 10,856

Deferred outflows of resources           593,525           299,580

Total assets and deferred outflows $     4,200,301 $     3,835,037

Current liabilities $        400,116 $        357,036

Net pension liability 1,473,219 1,142,524

Net OPEB liability                                                505,983 -

Other Long term liabilities        1,116,019        1,152,840

Total liabilities 3,495,337 2,652,400

Deferred inflow of resources            113,328 84,504
Net position
  Net investment in capital assets (237,059) (221,504)

  Restricted for depreciation 62,577 62,174

  Restricted for economic development 487,966 485,876

  Unrestricted           278,152           771,587

Total net position           591,636        1,098,133

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, 
and net position $     4,200,301 $     3,835,037

At the close of the fiscal year, assets (net of deferred outflows) exceeded total liabilities by $111,439. Total assets 
(including deferred outflows) increased $365,264 (9.52%) from June 30, 2017, which is reflective of an increase in 
current assets, depreciation decreases in capital and amortized assets, and a very significant increase in deferred 
outflows of resources. The outstanding notes receivable decreased this year (19.36%) due to the normal
repayment within the Revolving Loan and Nonprofit Housing Production Loan Program Fund loans.

GADD's current liabilities increased $43,080 (12.07%) from June 30, 2017 primarily related to assuming the daily 
operation of our counties’ Senior Centers late in the fiscal year.   Other long term liabilities decreased, as 
expected, primarily in direct relation to the annual mortgage payment required by the USDA Rural Development 
and required payments to the Kentucky Housing Corporation.

Governmental Auditing Standards Board (GASB) requires GADD to recognize a net pension liability, a net OPEB 
liability, and deferred outflows and inflows of resources.  (See footnote 9 and 10 beginning on page 18)  These 
accounts are reflective of our proportionate share of the state County Employees Retirement System (CERS). The 
calculations change from year-to-year, and have no bearing on GADD’s operations.

Due to newly adopted GASB requirements, GADD’s Total Net Position has suffered a tremendous decrease.  
Footnote 21 explains that the June 30, 2017 balance of $1,098,133 had to be restated to $733,416 (a $364,717 
reduction).  Also fiscal year 2017 financials recognized a negative $63,854 net pension adjustment whereas fiscal 
year 2018’s net pension adjustment is a negative $206,840.  
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GADD's revenues earned and expenses incurred throughout fiscal year 2018 were in accordance with 
management's expectations. The following condensed statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position provide a more detailed look.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

                        FY 2018                          FY 2017

Revenues:

Federal and state revenues $     1,748,541 $   1,865,950

Local Revenues / Service Fees 578,939 641,653

Revolving loan interest            10,874             9,573

Total revenues 2,338,354 2,517,176

Expenses:

Personnel 1,196,733 1,039,331

Contractual 799,182 1,056,719

Other         448,016         355,655

Total operating expenses      2,443,931      2,451,705

Operating income (loss) (105,577) 65,471

Non-operating income (expense)       (44,085)      (43,703)

Increase (decrease) in net position (149,662) 21,768
  

Net assets – beginning of year, as restated 733,416 1,077,511

Adjustments and changes             7,882          (1,146)

Net Assets – End of Year $       591,636 $   1,098,133

Federal and state revenues represent funds awarded to GADD through contractual agreements which make these 
amounts vary from one fiscal year to another. Local revenue is comprised of various items including matching 
contributions towards a federal or state funded program, cash donated or generated by the aging program, 
city/county annual dues, and other miscellaneous receipts.  Grouped in this category are also service fees, i.e. 
revenue from the Participant Directed Services Program.

From June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018, GADD's total revenues decreased by $178,822 (7.10%).  In FY 2017 GADD 
received a WIOA grant and did not in FY 2018, less in-kind contributions generated by our aging programs were
recognized in FY 2018, and there was a reduction in the amount of funds GADD receives each month under the 
PDS program (see footnote 18).

Total operating expenses (net of pension related costs) decreased by $150,760 (6.31%).  Some programs, such 
as JFA, Aging, and Performance Contracts were forced to incur less expense in FY 2018 due to reductions in 
funding.  Yet fiscal year 2018 operations were still performed to the same standards as in prior years. This is a 
significant achievement considering the decrease in revenue.   Including pension related costs, total operating 
expenses decreased less than 1%.

An analysis of expenditures shows that personnel costs (excluding pension related costs) only increased $14,446 
(1.48%) during the current fiscal year.  Several new employees were hired late in the fiscal year to fill positions in 
our counties’ Senior Centers.  The decrease in contractual expenses category is primarily reflective of an aging 
sub-provider cancelling their contract with GADD in March 2018. Other expenditures increased 25.97% primarily 
reflective of a $73,790 cash outlay to purchase two new Senior Center vans.

Adjustments or changes to net position represent occurrences that are not related to current year revenues or 
expenditures but affects GADD's net position.  GADD determined it would not be able to collect an outstanding 
receivable on a performance-based contract from 5 years ago, plus elected to allow a deferred revenue from 3 
years ago to increase its net position.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

GADD continued its investment in capital assets during fiscal year 2018. The amount is comprised of property, 
furniture, equipment, vehicles, building and land. Net capital assets decreased slightly (4.05%) and reflected a net 
balance of $816,140 at June 30, 2018.

06-30-17 FY 2018 06-30-18
Balance Additions Balance

Property and equipment $      512,895 $          1,937     $    514,832
Building and land       1,109,831                           -          1,109,831

Total fixed assets 1,622,726 1,937 1,624,663
Less: accumulated depreciation         (772,169)          (36,354)        (808,523)

Net $     850,557 $     (34,417) $     816,140

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

GADD considered many factors when initially setting the fiscal year 2018 budget and continued to monitor it 
constantly and carefully as the year's activity unfolded. Our Area Development District receives the majority of its 
funding from federal, state and special contracts. Because of this, a portion of our annual revenue is fairly steady 
except for state-imposed budget reductions.  For example, this year's budget included sizeable cuts in funding 
from the Department of Aging and Independent Living, our primary grantor. With contractual responsibilities and 
expenses increasing, while the revenue is decreasing, it is quite difficult to manage these aging programs 
effectively and provide the level of services our area citizens need.

The major focus for the upcoming year remains the same as in recent ones: a conscientious effort to (1) seek new 
federal, state, and local funding sources and (2) acquire additional Performance Based contracts to offset the 
deficiency in the federal and state funded programs.  

In addition, GADD faces a new challenge in fiscal year 2019 related to its aging services: obtaining additional 
funds to supplement the cost of providing services to our senior citizens and operating the Senior Centers in each 
county.  GADD’s long time sub-provider, East Kentucky Independent Services Organization, cancelled our contract
in March 2018.  The costs for running the centers and providing related services (such as congregate and home-
delivered meals) are significantly higher, yet the federal and state funding for such is being reduced.  It is crucial to 
our aging programs that sufficient funding be provided.  If not, GADD will be unable to provide the level of services 
our seniors desperately need.

As reflected in this report, GADD has once again endured another difficult year, financially.  Management does not 
expect the next few years to prove any different.

CONTACTING GADD

The financial report is designed to provide GADD's citizens, investors, creditors, and other interested parties with a 
general overview of the agency's finances and to demonstrate GADD's accountability for the funding it receives. If 
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Joshua A. Farrow, Executive 
Director, at 110 Lake Park Drive, Morehead, KY 40351. Mr. Farrow may also be reached by phone at (606) 780-
0090 or at joshua.farrow@ky.gov.

-6-



GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

____

Current assets
Cash - unrestricted 1,273,132$     
Cash - restricted 584,562          
Accounts receivable, net 620,895
Restricted notes receivable, net 54,098            

Total current assets 2,532,687       

Noncurrent assets
Notes receivable, net of current portion 247,455          
Other noncurrent assets 10,494
Capital assets, net 816,140          

Total noncurrent assets 1,074,089       

Total assets 3,606,776       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources - pension 446,781          

Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 146,744          

        Total deferred outflows of resources 593,525          

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 4,200,301$     

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 224,621$        
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 35,183            
Accrued interest payable 5,356              
Other current liabilities 14,050            
Unearned grant revenue 1,205              

Funds held for Morgan County Tornado Relief Fund 89,361            

Notes payable, current portion 30,340            

Total current liabilities 400,116          

Long-term liabilities
Accrued annual leave 38,600            
Net pension liability 1,473,219       
Net OPEB liability 505,983
Long-term debt 1,077,419       

Total long-term liabilities 3,095,221       

Total liabilities 3,495,337       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources - pension 86,837            
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB 26,491            

Total deferred inflows of resources 113,328          

Net position
Net investment in capital assets (237,059)         
Restricted for depreciation 62,577            
Restricted for economic development 487,966          
Unrestricted 278,152          

Total net position 591,636          

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 4,200,301$     

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the financial statements.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

for the year ended June 30, 2018

_____

REVENUES
Federal 686,504$      
State 1,062,037     
Local / service fees (includes in-kind and program income) 578,939        
Revolving loan interest 10,874          

Total revenues 2,338,354     

EXPENSES
Salaries 660,409        
Fringe benefits 536,324
Travel 42,789          
Contractual 799,182        
Other  405,227        

Total expenses 2,443,931     

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (105,577)       

NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)

Interest income 890               

Interest expense (44,975)         
`

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (44,085)         

Increase (decrease) in net position (149,662)       

Net position - beginning of year, as restated 733,416        

Adjustments for deferred income (accounts receivable)
and write-offs from prior years 7,882            

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 591,636$      

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

_____

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from:  
   Grant receipts 2,166,501$     
   Other receipts 217,712          
Cash paid to/for:
   Payments to suppliers and providers of goods and services (1,090,601)      
   Payments to employee services and benefits (1,037,273)      

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 256,339          

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

Interest paid (44,231)           
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,937)             
Principal paid on capital debt (29,180)           

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related
financing activities (75,348)           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Bank interest 890                 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 890                 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 181,881          

Cash - beginning of the year 1,675,813       

CASH - END OF THE YEAR 1,857,694$     

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) (105,577)$       
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 36,716            
Bad debt expense 6,441              
Net pension adjustment 185,827          
Net OPEB adjustment 21,013            
Prior year grants receivable/deferred grant activity 7,882              
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 15,476            
Loans receivable 53,867            
Accounts payable 77,094            
Accrued payroll and other liabilities 2,672              
Accrued leave (7,266)             
Funds held for Morgan County Tornado Relief Fund 37                   
Deferred revenues (37,843)           

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 256,339$        

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018
______

1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity 

The Gateway Area Development District (the “District”) is a governmental non-profit corporation formed
pursuant to KRS Chapter 147A which has as its primary purpose the promotion of economic development 
and the establishment of a framework for joint federal, state and local efforts directed toward providing 
basic services and facilities essential to the social, economic and physical development of a five-county 
area consisting of the counties of Rowan, Bath, Morgan, Menifee and Montgomery. The sixteen-member
Board of Directors is composed of officials of political subdivisions and private citizens within the District.  
Executive Order 71-1267, signed May 1969, designated the District as the official comprehensive planning 
and program development agency for Eastern Kentucky.  The Order further designated the District as the 
regional clearinghouse pursuant to United States Office of Management and Budget Circular A-95 known 
in Kentucky as KIRP, Kentucky Intergovernmental Review Process.  The 1972 Kentucky Legislature 
introduced and passed legislation (House Bill No. 423) which created and established the District under 
Kentucky law.  

The purpose of the District is to promote, protect and develop the economy, health, education and general 
welfare and to implement projects for the people of the counties included in the District, and to further act 
in conjunction with adjoining area development districts in the Northeastern Kentucky area.

In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes, management of the District 
has considered all potential component units. The criteria for including a potential component unit within 
the reporting entity is (1) ability to exercise oversight responsibility, (2) scope of public services, and (3) 
special financing relationships. Based upon these criteria, management has not included any component 
units as part of the reporting entity.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements are presented in accordance with the provisions of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board codification as it relates to special-purpose governments and, accordingly, the financial 
statements consist of the following:

 Management’s discussion and analysis (required supplementary information);
 Basic financial statements

- Fund financial statements
- Notes to the financial statements

Entity-wide financial statements – the District is a single fund, special-purpose entity that provides regional 
planning, development and aging services to the city, county and nonprofit agencies within the five-county
area.  No entity wide statements are required because a single proprietary fund is used for the District.

Fund Financial Statements – the District’s financial statements include a statement of net position, a 
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and a statement of cash flows.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported in
the financial statements. The District uses the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenue Recognition Policies – The District recognizes revenue on the accrual basis of accounting.  
Grant and contract revenue is recognized as eligible expenses are incurred.  Revenue is recognized on 
performance contracts upon the completion of agreed upon services.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018
______

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Nonexchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, 
include grants, entitlements and donations. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations are 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility 
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be 
used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the District must 
provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the 
resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis.

Unearned revenue arises when funds are received before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied. Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met are recorded as
deferred revenue.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.

Revolving Loan Notes Receivable

Revolving loan notes receivable are stated at face value, less an allowance for loan losses. The allowance 
is established through periodic charges to direct expenses

Compensated Absences

Effective July 2016, full-time employees working 37.5 hours a week start accruing leave on the first day of 
the pay period following a 3-month waiting period. The amount of annual leave hours received is based on 
the employee’s length of service or as specified in a written employment offer. Temporary and part-time 
employees earn no benefits. Annual leave can be carried forward from one year to the next. On June 30th

of each fiscal year, the accumulated sick leave balance shall not exceed 675 hours and accumulated 
annual leave shall not exceed the maximum stated in the GADD's Employee Handbook applicable to the 
employee’s length of service, unless granted special permission by the Executive Director or Board of 
Directors.

The accrued leave liability for accumulated annual leave reported in the statement of net position at
June 30, 2018 was $38,600.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of amounts on deposit at financial institutions.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for loan losses related to revolving loans is established through a provision for loan losses 
charged to expenses. Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management
believes that the collectability of the principal is unlikely. The allowance is an amount that management 
believes will be adequate to absorb possible losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible, 
based on evaluations of the collectability of loans and prior loan loss experience. The evaluations take into 
consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, overall portfolio
quality, review of specific problem loans, and current economic conditions that may affect the borrowers’
ability to pay.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018
______

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date 
received. Improvements are capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to 
the value of the asset or materially extend an assets life are not.

All reported capital assets, other than land, are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the following useful lives for both general capital assets and proprietary fund assets:

Description                                                        Estimated Lives

Buildings and improvements                                  10-40 years
Equipment                                                                5-10 years
Furniture and fixtures                                               5-10 years
Automobiles                                                             5 years
Computers and technology                                      3-5 years

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Each year, the District adopts an annual budget that is approved by its Board of Directors prior to July 1st.
This budget is required to be filed on the Department of Local Government's website prior to July 15th for
the upcoming fiscal year. Budgetary restrictions apply primarily at the grant level. The District utilizes the 
budget as an operational and management tool and a cost allocation plan is approved by the Department 
for Local Government. The budget is approved by the board of directors and monthly reports are 
presented to the board and management using budget comparisons. Within sixty days after the fiscal year 
is complete, the District is required to submit financials that compares actual expenses to the adopted 
budget also via the Department of Local Government's website.

In-Kind

In-kind contributions included in the acDistricting financial statements consist of donated volunteer time, 
facilities or services.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 
that time.

Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position and additions to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by the plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018
______

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets 
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported 
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation 
adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or 
regulations of other governments.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the District. 
For the District, those revenues are primarily grants and interest earned on revolving loans. All other 
revenues are non-operating, such as investment income. Operating expenses can be tied specifically to 
the production of the goods and services, such as materials and labor and direct overhead. Other 
expenses are non-operating, such as interest expense.

Cost Allocation Plan

Gateway Area Development District is required by the Department of Local Government, to operate under 
a cost allocation plan that conforms to 2 CFR Part 225. A summary of the cost allocation plan begins on 
page 14. The District is in conformity with 2 CFR Part 225.

Management’s Review of Subsequent Events

The District has evaluated and considered the need to recognize or disclose subsequent vents through 
September 28, 2018, which represents the date that these financial statements were available to be 
issued.  Subsequent events past this date, as they pertain to the year ended June 30, 2018, have not 
been evaluated by the District.  

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, designated fund balances, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018
______

2.   COST ALLOCATION

Joint costs are accumulated into a cost pool and allocated to grant programs based on direct personnel 
costs, per a written cost allocation plan. All funds expended by the District are charged either to a specific 
grant and/or program element as a direct charge or allocated to all programs as a shared (indirect) cost. 
Direct charges are defined in 2 CFR Part 225, Uniform Guidance (formerly OMB Circular A-87 and A-133) 
as those that can be identified specifically with a particular cost objective. Shared (indirect) costs are 
those incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting more than one grant and/or program element. All 
costs are recognized under the provisions of 2 CFR Part 225, Uniform Guidance (formerly OMB Circular 
A-I02). Below is a listing of direct and shared costs as they are charged by the District.

1. Salaries - The salaries of all employees, both professional and supportive, are charged
directly to program elements based on the amount of actual time attributable to each, in
accordance with the bi-weekly time sheet. Significant hours expended are recognized as a
direct cost to the respective program element(s) in which the employee worked. Central
administrative staff (including the Executive Assistant, Staff Assistant, Finance Officers and
Executive Director s time) is customarily and primarily charged as shared. If an unusual 
amount of time is expended towards a specific element(s), or if these employees serve in a 
dual-role they may charge hours directly to those programs accordingly - as deemed 
appropriate and necessary by the Executive Director. All program planners and coordinators 
salaries are charged as direct costs to the respective program element(s) in which they work. 
If these employees also assist with overall office-wide tasks (such as web page maintenance 
or providing computer and technical support), those hours are charged as shared.

2. Employee Burden - The word "burden" refers to District paid fringe benefits.  Burden is 
charged in like manner as the employee's salary by its proportionate share and is 
automatically calculated via the payroll software. All employee burden (e.g. FICA, workman' s 
compensation, retirement, health insurances, etc.) which can be specifically related to an
employee whose salary is being charged as a direct cost is also charged a direct cost. The 
employee burden related to an employee whose salary is charged as a shared cost is 
charged as a shared cost. If an employee burden cost cannot be broken down by a specific 
element or employee with an acceptable degree of accuracy (such as the burden associated 
with used vacation hours), it is charged as a shared cost.

3. Shared Costs - The shared cost pool is comprised of costs that either (a) cannot be 
attributed directly to a program (b) relates to all the work that the District performs (c) is 
general administrative by nature or (d) relates to District facilities. At the end of each month, 
this pool of shared cost is distributed among the work elements directly in relation to the total 
personnel cost for the staff working ill the program.

4. Consulting Contracts - Generally, contracts or sub-contracts, including those for personal 
services, which the District executes with a third party can be identified to a specific program 
element and therefore, becomes a direct cost of said program. All consultant contracts are 
charged as direct cost to the program element to which the work relates.

5. Printing and Publications - Printing which is directly attributable to a specific work element is 
charged as a direct cost to the element, and consideration has been given to those direct 
costs in preparing the budget. Publications, whether prepared in-office or out-of-the office, 
are charged to those specific work elements to which they apply. Ads, notices of hearing, etc. 
that must be printed as legal notices are charged as direct costs where they can be identified 
in a sufficient amount. Advertising incurred to recruit new personnel is charged to the work 
element for which the position relates. In areas where the cost is minor or may benefit 
numerous work elements, the cost may be charged as shared. Miscellaneous or office-wide 
needs (envelopes, checks, letterhead, etc.) are charged as a shared cost.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018
______

2.   COST ALLOCATION (CONTINUED)

6. Travel - Business-related travel costs are incurred for a specific purpose. All approved travel 
expenses are charged against the same program or element for which the employee's time 
is charged, as supported by his/her timesheet. Due to the limited number of staff and funds 
available, staff persons frequently utilize trips to cover more than one work element. If 
determined appropriate and necessary by the Executive Director, an employee whose travel 
pertains to more than one work element and can specifically identify those work elements, 
may also charge the cost to more than one work element.

7. Board Travel - Board members who travel pertaining to a specific element, charges travel to 
that work element for which the travel expense is incurred. Any travel that does not pertain to 
a certain work element will be charged as a shared cost.

8. Vacation Leave - At the end of each month, the cost associated with the full-time employees' 
earned vacation hours is charged to leave accrual accounts. The accounting software then 
allocates a proportionate share of the total monthly amount to each element for which the 
employee worked during that month. Vacation earned, which pertains to shared cost salaries, 
is also charged as shared cost. These provisions permit the correct charging of each element 
and assure that each grant fund is charged equitably for vacation accrual.

9. Audit and Accounting Fees - Costs related to the District's annual external audit, performed 
by an independent CPA firm, are charged as a shared cost. The accounting system then 
permits each element to accept its proportionate amounts of charges. Any additional charges 
that are directly related to extra work in a specific element will be charged directly to the 
program.

10. Space Cost - Space-related expenses and routine repair and maintenance is charged as a 
shared cost unless otherwise determined by the Executive Director to be exclusively for a 
specific work element. The District's mortgage payment, utilities, insurance depreciation, 
cleaning and general upkeep or repairs are included as shared cost.

11. Telephone/Internet - Generally telephone and internet charges are charged as a shared 
cost.  If a particular grantee requires a special service (such as a toll-free number, dedicated 
line, or conference call) that cost will be charged directly to the corresponding work element.

12. Fixed Asset Additions - General-purpose non-consumable items (such as buildings, vehicles, 
equipment, or computers) are capitalized and depreciated via the straight-line method over 
the asset's useful life. Depreciation is charged monthly as a shared cost. Equipment or other 
capital purchases are not charged as a shared cost.

13. Equipment-RentaI/Lease/Maintenance - All equipment rentals purchases, and maintenance 
costs are charged as shared cost unless the corresponding piece of equipment is used 
exclusively by a specific element or grant award.

14. Supplies/Material/Postage - The Staff Assistant purchases commonly used items to keep in 
a central location accessible by all employees. These items are charged as a shared cost. 
Other items that are identifiable with a specific program area are charged directly to that work 
element.

15. Meetings and Conferences - The cost associated with hosting a meeting or conference 
(food, materials, etc.) for which the primary purpose is the dissemination of technical 
information is charged to the work element for which it relates. If the meeting benefits the 
entire agency, such as the District's board meetings, the costs is charged as shared. If 
determined appropriate and necessary by the Executive Director, meetings serving a dual-
purpose may be charged to more than one work element.
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2.   COST ALLOCATION (CONTINUED)

16. Dues/Subscriptions/Memberships - The majority of these costs is for the agency as a whole, 
or for the Executive Director, and is recognized as a shared cost. If the item relates to a
specific employee, such as a required licensure, the cost is charged as a direct cost to their 
primary work element.

All additional costs not identified above are charged as (a) a direct cost if specifically identifiable with a 
particular element or (b) as a shared cost if incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting more than 
one element and is not readily assignable.

3. GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Federal and state receivables are expected to be fully collectible.  Federal and state grants receivable 
consists of the following as of June 30, 3018:

Aging $  338,722

PDS (formerly CDO) 94,263

JFA 66,498
Transportation 84,712

Hazard mitigation 19,600

Various local       17,100

Total $  620,895

4. LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Revolving Loan Program was established by initial grants from the U.S. Department of Commerce, 
Economic Development Administration. The District received a grant of $500,000 to establish a revolving 
loan program to assist high-risk small businesses in local communities and stimulate economic 
development in the area. In addition, the District provided a local match of $167,000, as required by the 
grant. At June 30, 2018, the acDistricting financial statements include revolving loans receivable of 
$304,320 and cash of $383,790.

The Nonprofit Housing Production Loan Programs’ (NHPLP) funding originates from the Kentucky 
Housing Corporation to provide loans to purchase or rehabilitate homes for low-income individuals.  
Outstanding loans receivable as of June 30, 2018 were as follows:

    

Revolving loans - business $   304,320

NHPLP         53,789

Total loans 358,109

Less: allowance for NHPLP (19,066)

Less: allowance for RLF      (37,490)

Net loans 301,553
Less: current portion      (54,098)
Long-term portion of loans $    247,455

-16-



GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018
______

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:

06/30/17 Additions Deductions 6/30/18

Land, not being depreciated $      18,500 $             - $            - $     18,500

Assets being depreciated:
Buildings 1,091,331                 -                - 1,091,331

Equipment      512,895          1,937                -     514,832

Totals at historical cost 1,622,726 1,937                - 1,624,663

Less: accumulated depreciation    (772,169)     (36,354)                -   (808,523)

Capital assets, net $  850,557 $   (34,417) $             - $ 816,140

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

A summary of activity in long-term debt obligations is as follows:

Description
Balance at

June 30, 2017 Issued Payments
Balance at

June 30, 2018

Kentucky Housing Corporation, 
various loans, each with a 20-year 
maturity, bearing interest at a rate 
of 1%, maturing June, 2025 $       64,885 $           - $     10,325 $      54,560

USDA Rural Development, 
secured by office building, 
$100,000, interest at a rate of 
4.125%, due May, 2040 93,798

            
             - 1,388 92,410

USDA Rural Development, 
secured by office building, 2 loans 
of $550,000, interest at a rate of 
4.125%, due June, 2047        978,262                -     17,473      960,789

$  1,136,945 $             - $   29,186 $1,107,759

Minimum future principal and interest requirements relating to the above notes are as follows at June
30, 2018:

Year Principal Interest Total

2019 $      30,340                    $      43,989                     $     74,329
2020 29,656 43,046 72,702
2021 29,680 42,084 71,764
2022 30,120 41,094 71,214
2023 29,915 40,070 69,985
2024-2028 152,074 183,798 335,872
2029-2033 166,537 153,048 319,585
2034-2038 203,839 115,746 319,585
2039-2043 245,462 69,141 314,603
2044-2047       190,136        18,658     208,794

Totals $ 1,107,759 $   750,674 $ 1,858,433
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7.  DEPRECIATION RESERVES

The notes payable to the United States Department of Agriculture - Rural Development require
depreciation reserve accounts be established. The District is currently required to deposit $6,336 annually 
until a balance of $63,300 is attained. The balance in the reserve at June 30, 2018 was $62,577, the 
required balance was $62,568.

8. CONCENTRATIONS

The District depends on grants from federal and state sources for its continued existence.

9.  PENSION PLAN

Gateway Area Development District is a participating employer of the County Employees' Retirement 
System (CERS). Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 61.645, the Board of Trustees of 
Kentucky Retirement Systems administers the CERS.  The plan issues publicly available financial 
statements which may be downloaded from the Kentucky Retirement Systems website.

Plan Description – CERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers 
substantially all regular full-time members employed in positions of each participating county, city, and 
school board, and any additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in the System.  The plan 
provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members.  Retirement benefits may be 
extended to beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances.  Cost-of-living (COLA) 
adjustments are provided at the discretion of state legislature.

Contributions – For the year ended June 30, 2018, plan members were required to contribute 5% of 
wages for non-hazardous job classifications.  Employees hired after September 1, 2008 were required to 
contribute an additional 1% to cover the cost of medical insurance that is provided through CERS.  
Participating employers were required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate.  Per Kentucky 
Revised Statute Section 78.545(33), normal contribution and past service contribution rates shall be 
determined by the Board on the basis of an annual valuation last proceeding the July 1 of a new biennium. 
The Board may amend contribution rates as of the first day of July of the second year of a biennium, if it 
is determined on the basis of a subsequent actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are 
necessary to satisfy requirements determined in accordance with actuarial basis adopted by the Board.  
For the year ended June 30, 2018, participating employers contributed 19.18% of each employee’s 
wages.  The contributions are allocated to both the pension and insurance trusts.  The insurance trust is 
more fully described in Note 10. Plan members contributed 14.48% to the pension trust for non-
hazardous job classifications.   The contribution rates are equal to the actuarially determined rate set by 
the Board.  Administrative costs of Kentucky Retirement System are financed through employer 
contributions and investment earnings.

Plan members who began participating on, or after, January 1, 2014, were required to contribute to the 
Cash Balance Plan.  The Cash Balance Plan is known as a hybrid plan because it has characteristics of 
both a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan.  Members in the plan contribute a set 
percentage of their salary each month to their own account.  Plan members contribute 5% of wages to 
their own account and 1% to the health insurance fund.  The employer contribution rate is set annually by 
the Board based on an actuarial valuation.  The employer contributes a set percentage of each member’s 
salary.  Each month, when employer contributions are received, an employer pay credit is deposited to the 
member’s account.  Each member’s account is credited with a 4% employer pay credit.  The employer 
pay credit represents a portion of the employer contribution.
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9.  PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District contributed $111,996, or 100% of the required contribution.
The contribution was allocated $81,535 to the CERS pension fund and $30,461 to the CERS insurance 
fund.

Benefits – CERS provides retirement, health insurance, death and disability benefits to Plan employees 
and beneficiaries.  Employees are vested in the plan after five years' service.  

For retirement purposes, employees are grouped into three tiers based on hire date:

Tier 1 Participation date Before September 1, 2008
Unreduced retirement 27 years service or 65 years old
Reduced retirement At least 5 years service and 55 years old or

25 years service and any age

Tier 2 Participation date September 1, 2008 - December 31, 2013
Unreduced retirement At least 5 years service and 65 years old or

age 57+ and sum of service years plus age equal to 87+
Reduced retirement At least 10 years service and 60 years old

Tier 3 Participation date After December 31, 2013
Unreduced retirement At least 5 years service and 65 years old or

age 57+ and sum of service years plus age equal 87+
Reduced retirement Not available

Cost of living adjustments are provided at the discretion of the General Assembly. Retirement is based on 
a factor of the number of years’ service and hire date multiplied by the average of the highest five years’ 
earnings. Reduced benefits are based on factors of both of these components. Participating employees 
become eligible to receive the health insurance benefit after at least 180 months of service. Death 
benefits are provided for both death after retirement and death prior to retirement. Death benefits after 
retirement are $5,000 in lump sum. Five years’ service is required for death benefits prior to retirement 
and the employee must have suffered a duty-related death. The decedent’s beneficiary will receive the 
higher of the normal death benefit and $10,000 plus 25% of the decedent’s monthly final rate of pay and 
any dependent child will receive 10% of the decedent’s monthly final rate of pay up to 40% for all 
dependent children. Five years’ service is required for nonservice-related disability benefits.

Pension Liabilities, Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources – At 
June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of 
$1,473,219. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share 
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, 
actuarially determined. The District's proportionate share at June 30, 2017 was .025169 percent, which 
was an increase of .001964 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.  
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9. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $266,551. At June 30, 
2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual results $              1,827 $        37,397
Changes of assumptions 271,849 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on Plan 
   investments 18,222 -
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 73,345 49,440
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date               81,538                       -

Total $          446,781 $          86,837

The $81,538 of deferred outflows of resources resulting from the District’s contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 
2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2019 $      115,058
2020 $      120,903
2021 $        61,364
2022   $     (18,919)

Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuations were 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.30% 
Salary increases 3.05%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.25%, net of Plan investment expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 
(multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the 
mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 1 
year for females). For disabled members, the RP- 2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with 
Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for the period after disability retirement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuations were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2013.
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9. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies 
prepared every five years. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return 
assumptions including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
return, net of investment expense and inflation) were developed by the investment consultant for each 
major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding 
expected inflation.  The capital market assumptions developed by the investment consultant are intended 
for use over a 10-year horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of return for funding 
pension plans which covers a longer time frame. The assumption is intended to be a long-term assumption 
and is not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation 
assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic nominal real rates of return for each major asset 
class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-term  
Nominal 

Real Rate 
of Return

U.S. Equity 26.5% 11.27%
Non-U.S. Equity 26.5% 2.83%
Fixed Income 12.0% 7.69%

Real Return 8.0% 4.00%
Real Estate 5.0% 5.95%
Absolute Return     10.0% 3.96%
Private Equity 10.0% 10.95%
Cash Equivalent      2.0% 3.65%

100%

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.25 percent. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that local employers would 
contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of projected compensation over the remaining 26-
year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The actuarial determined contribution 
rate is adjusted to reflect the phase in of anticipated gains on actuarial value of assets over the first four 
years of the projection period. The discount rate does not use a municipal bond rate.  

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate – The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 6.25 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.25 percent) 
or 1-percentage-point higher (7.25 percent) than the current rate: 

Discount rate

District’s
proportionate share 

of net pension 
liability

1% decrease 5.25% $        1,858,066
Current discount rate 6.25% $        1,473,219
1% increase 7.25% $        1,151,324
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9. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Payable to the Pension Plan – At June 30, 2018, the District reported a payable of $10,261 for the
outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018, of 
which $7,747 was allocated to the CERS pension fund.  The payable includes only the pension 
contribution allocation.

10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

Plan Description – As more fully described in Note 9, the District participates in the County Employees’ 
Retirement System (CERS). CERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that 
covers substantially all regular full-time members employed in positions of each participating county, city, 
and school board, and any additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in the System. In 
addition to retirement benefits, the plan provides for health insurance benefits to plan members (other 
postemployment benefits or OPEB). OPEB benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of plan members
under certain circumstances.  

Contributions – As more fully described in Note 9, plan members contribute to CERS for non-hazardous 
job classifications.  For the year ending June 30, 2018, the employer’s contribution was 4.70% to the 
insurance trust. Employees hired after September 1, 2008 were required to contribute an additional 1% to 
cover the cost of medical insurance that is provided through CERS. Participating employers were required 
to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 78.545(33), normal 
contribution and past service contribution rates shall be determined by the Board on the basis of an 
annual valuation last proceeding the July 1 of a new biennium. The Board may amend contribution rates 
as of the first day of July of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent 
actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements determined in 
accordance with actuarial basis adopted by the Board. The contribution rates are equal to the actuarially 
determined rate set by the Board.  Administrative costs of Kentucky Retirement System are financed 
through employer contributions and investment earnings.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District contributed $30,461, or 100% of the required contribution.

Benefits – CERS provides health insurance benefits to Plan employees and beneficiaries.  

For retirement purposes, employees are grouped into three tiers based on hire date:

Tier 1 Participation date Before July 1, 2003
Insurance eligibility 10 years of service credit required
Benefit Set percentage of single coverage health insurance 

based on service credit accrued at retirement 

Tier 1 Participation date Before September 1, 2008 but after July 1, 2003
Insurance eligibility 10 years of service credit required
Benefit Set dollar amount based on service credit accrued, 

increased annually 

Tier 2 Participation date After September 1, 2008 and before December 31, 2013
Insurance eligibility 15 years of service credit required
Benefit Set dollar amount based on service credit accrued, 

increased annually

Tier 3 Participation date After December 31, 2013
Insurance eligibility 15 years of service credit required
Benefit Set dollar amount based on service credit accrued, 

increased annually
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10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

OPEB Liabilities, Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources – At June 
30, 2018, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability of $505,983. 
The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate 
the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of 
the net OPEB liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the 
OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined.  The 
District’s proportionate share at June 30, 2017 was .025169%.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense of $57,659. At June 30, 2018, 
the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual results $                  - $          1,405
Changes of assumptions          110,099   -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on Plan 
   investments             - 23,912
Changes in proportion and differences between District    

contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 1,174
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date           36,645                     -
Total $      146,744 $        26,491

The $36,645 of deferred outflows of resources resulting from the District’s contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 
2019. This includes an adjustment of $6,184 related to the implicit subsidy, which is required to be 
recognized as a deferred outflow of resources. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2019 $         14,386
2020 $         14,386
2021 $         14,386
2022 $         14,386
2023 $         20,364
2024 $           5,700

-23-



GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018
______

10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions – The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.30% 
Salary increases 3.05%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.25%, net of Plan investment expense, including inflation
Healthcare trend 

Pre – 65: Initial trend starting at 7.25% at January 1, 2019, and 
gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over 
a period of 13 years.

Post – 65: Initial trend starting at 5.10% at January 1, 2019, and 
gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over 
a period of 11 years.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 
(multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the 
mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 1 
year for females). For disabled members, the RP- 2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with 
Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for the period after disability retirement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2013.  The total OPEB liability was rolled-forward 
from the valuation date (June 30, 2016) to the plan’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.  Subsequent to the 
actuarial valuation date (June 30, 2016) but prior to the measurement date, and before the required 2019 
experience study, the KRS Board of Trustees reviewed investment trends, inflation, and payroll growth 
historical trends.  Based on this review the Board adopted updated actuarial assumptions, which were 
used in performing the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017.

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies 
prepared every five years. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return 
assumptions including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were developed by the investment consultant 
for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
then adding expected inflation. 

The capital market assumptions developed by the investment consultant are intended for use over a 10-
year horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of return for funding pension plans which 
covers a longer time frame. The assumption is intended to be a long-term assumption and is not expected 
to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a 
fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years.
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10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic nominal real rates of return for each major asset 
class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
   Target  
Allocation

Long-term 
Nominal 

Real Rate 
of Return

U.S Equity
Non-U.S. Equity

26.5%
26.5%

9.56%
2.84%

Fixed Income 12.0% 6.53%
Real Return   8.0% 3.68%

Real Estate   5.0% 8.99%
Absolute Return 10.0% 3.89%
Private Equity 10.0% 9.74%
Cash Equivalent   2.0% 2.69%
   Total 100%

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.84% for non-hazardous 
classifications. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that local 
employers would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of projected compensation over 
the remaining 26-year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The discount rate 
determination used an expected rate of return of 6.25%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.56%, as reported 
in Fidelity Index’s “20 –Year Municipal GO AA Index” as of June 30, 2017. However, the cost associated 
with the implicit employer subsidy was not included in the calculation of the System’s actuarial determined 
contributions, and any cost associated with the implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the System’s trusts. 
Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to future expected benefit payments associated with the 
implicit subsidy.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
– The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than 
the current rate:

Discount rate

District’s 
proportionate share 

of net OPEB 
liability

1% decrease 4.84% $          643,844
Current discount rate 5.84% $          505,983
1% increase 6.84% $          391,273
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10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare 
Cost Trend Rate – The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point 
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

District’s
proportionate share 

of net OPEB 
liability

1% decrease $          388,120
Current trend rate $          505,983
1% increase $          659,213

OPEB plan fiduciary net position – Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued financial report.

Payable to the Pension Plan – At June 30, 2018, the District reported a payable of $2,514 for the 
outstanding amount of contributions to the OPEB plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018.  The 
payable includes only the insurance contribution allocation.

11. CASH

The funds of the District must be deposited and invested under the terms of a contract. The depository
bank places approved pledged securities for safekeeping and trust with the District's agent bank in an
amount sufficient to protect District funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The
pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") insurance. At year end, the carrying amount of cash was 
$1,857,694. The bank balance totaled $1,894,047 of which $548,534 was covered by Federal depository 
insurance, with the remainder covered by collateral.

12. CONTINGENCIES

The District receives funding from Federal, state and local government agencies and private contributions. 
These funds are to be used for designated purposes only. For government agency grants, if based on the 
grantor's review the funds are considered not to have been used for the intended purpose the grantors 
may request a refund of monies advanced, or refuse to reimburse the District for its disbursements. The 
amount of such future refunds and unreimbursed disbursements, if any, is not expected to be significant. 
Continuation of the District's grant programs is predicated upon the grantors' satisfaction that the funds 
provided are being spent as intended and the grantors' intent to continue their programs.

13. INSURANCE AND RELATED ACTIVITIES

The District is exposed to various forms of loss of assets associated with the risks of fire, personal liability, 
theft, vehicular accidents, errors and omissions, fiduciary responsibility, etc. Each of these risk areas are 
covered through the purchase of commercial insurance. The District has purchased certain policies which 
are retrospectively rated which include worker's compensation insurance.
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14. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the District carries 
commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from the prior year and 
settlements have not exceeded coverage in the past three years.

15. COBRA

Under COBRA, employers are mandated to notify terminated employees of available continuing insurance 
coverage. Failure to comply with this requirement may put the District at risk for a substantial loss 
(contingency).

16. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The District has operating leases for office equipment. Rental expense for the year ending June 30, 2018
was $18,869.

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Year Amount 

2019 $11,060

17. UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenue includes revenues received, but not earned under the following programs, as of June 
30, 2018:

Melodies & Memories $        14

WIOA 1,150

MIPPA           41

$   1,205

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The District provides fiscal management services to Gateway PDS Program as Fiscal Agent (GADD
PDS). GADD PDS operates the Participant Directed Services program (formerly the Consumer Directed 
Options (CDO) program) for the Cabinet for Health and Family Services and the Department of Aging and 
Independent Living (DAIL) for the Gateway Area District. Waiver clients have the option to choose PDS at 
any time. The District serves as the fiscal agent for the client and as a support broker. For support broker, 
the District earns $265 per month per client based upon an actual visit made by District staff. For 
assessments, the District earns $100 when a new client is initially assessed or re-assessed annually. For 
financial management, the District earns $100 per month per client. For medical goods, the PDS program 
bills the state for actual costs when the need is determined. For payroll, claims are submitted to the state 
after each payroll is processed. 

On September 15, 2017 the fee structure was adjusted by DAIL.  Support broker fees were reduced to 
$162.50 per client visit made by District staff, and financial management was adjusted to $162.50 per 
month per client.  Additionally, traditional case management fees for support borker services were 
changed to $100 per visit.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the District earned $333,808 from the PDS program for 
administration and the District was owed $94,263 by the PDS program.
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19. PRIOR YEARS GRANT ACTIVITY

Adjustments have been made as a result of prior year activities totaling $7,882, during the year ended 
June 30, 2018:

20. FUNDS HELD FOR MORGAN COUNTY TORNADO RELIEF FUND

The District acts as the fiscal sponsor for the Morgan County Tornado Relief Fund. As of June 30, 2018, 
the District held $89,361, in donations for the Morgan County Tornado Relief Fund which are included in 
restricted cash and a like amount as the liability Funds Held for Morgan County Tornado Relief Fund. The 
fund was established to assist residents of Morgan County who are victims of the March 2, 2012 tornado. 
Charitable contributions to the Morgan County Tornado Relief Fund are tax-deductible under section 
170(c)(l) of the Internal Revenue Code, since made for a public purpose.

21. RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

Implementation of new accounting standard GASB Statement No. 75

During 2018 the District implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses financial reporting for state and local 
government employers whose employees are provided with other postemployment benefits (OPEB) 
through defined benefit plans that are covered under Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans.

The guidance contained in Statement 75 changed how governments calculate and report the costs and 
obligations associated with OPEB.  Under the new standards, GASB requires that cost-sharing 
governments report a net OPEB liability, OPEB expense, and OPEB related deferred inflows and outflows 
of resources based on their proportionate share of the collective amounts for all the governments in the 
plan.  In addition, GASB requires Statement 75 to be applied retroactively, which has resulted in a 
restatement of beginning net position as follows:

Net position, at beginning of year $        1,098,133
      Beginning net OPEB liability             (364,717)

   Net position, at beginning of year, as restated $             733,416
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Last Four Fiscal Years

_____

2018 2017 2016 2015

District’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.252% 0.023% 0.026% 0.024%
District’s proportionate share of the net pension 

liability (asset) 1,473,219$ 1,142,524$ 1,133,285$ 771,000$   
District's covered employee payroll 618,456$   553,557$   614,979$   545,052$   
District’s share of the net pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage of its covered employee payroll 238.209% 206.397% 184.280% 141.454%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 

of the total pension liability 53.32% 55.50% 59.97% 66.80%

Notes:
There were no changes in benefit terms.  However, the following changes in assumptions
were modified as of the June 30, 2017 valuation:
  The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.5% to 6.25%.
  The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.5% to 2.3%.
  Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4% to 2%.

Contractually required employer contributions exclude the portion of contributions paid to CERS but 
allocated to the insurance fund of the CERS.  The above contributions only include those contributions 
allocated directly to the CERS pension fund.

The measurement date of the net pension liability is one year preceding the fiscal year of the District.

The District's covered payroll reported above is payroll for the corresponding measurement date
of the net pension liability and differs from the District's fiscal year payroll, reported on the
Schedule of Contributions.

The above schedule will present 10 years of historical data, once available.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - PENSION

Last Five Fiscal Years

_____

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Contractually required employer    

contribution 81,535$      86,300$      68,750$      78,414$      74,890$      
Contributions relative to contractually 

required employer contribution 81,535        86,300        68,750        78,414        74,890        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                

District’s covered employee payroll 582,071$    618,456$    553,557$    614,979$    545,052$    
Employer contributions as a percentage

 of covered-employee payroll 14.01% 13.95% 12.42% 12.75% 13.74%

Notes:
There were no changes in benefit terms.  However, the following changes in assumptions
were modified as of the June 30, 2017 valuation:
  The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.5% to 6.25%.
  The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.5% to 2.3%.
  Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4% to 2%.

Contractually required employer contributions exclude the portion of contributions paid to CERS but 
allocated to the insurance fund of the CERS.  The above contributions only include those contributions 
allocated directly to the CERS pension fund.

The District's covered payroll reported above is payroll for the District's corresponding fiscal year and differs
 from the covered payroll reported on the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability.  

The above schedule will present 10 years of historical data, once available.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF 

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY

Last Two Fiscal Years

_____

2018 2017

District's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.02517% 0.0252%

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability (asset) 505,983$   396,878$  

District's covered employee payroll 618,456$   553,557$  

District’s share of the net OPEB liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered employee payroll 81.81% 71.70%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability 52.39% unavailable

Notes:
There were no changes in benefit terms.  However, the following changes in assumptions
were modified as of the June 30, 2017 valuation:
  The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.5% to 6.25%.
  The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.5% to 2.3%.
  Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4% to 2%.

Contractually required employer contributions exclude the portion of contributions paid to CERS but 
allocated to the pension fund of the CERS.  The above contributions only include those contributions 
allocated directly to the CERS insurance fund.

The measurement date of the net OPEB liability is one year preceding the fiscal year of the District.

The District's covered payroll reported above is payroll for the corresponding measurement date
of the net OPEB liability and differs from the Company's fiscal year payroll, reported on the
Schedule of Contributions.

The above schedule will present 10 years of historical data, once available.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY

 SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB

Last Five Fiscal Years

_____

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required employer    
contribution 30,461$    29,262$    25,684$    30,259$    28,003$    

Contributions relative to contractually 

required employer contribution 30,461      29,262      25,684      30,259      28,003      

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

District’s covered employee payroll 582,071$  618,456$  553,557$  614,979$  545,052$  

Employer contributions as a percentage
 of covered-employee payroll 5.23% 4.73% 4.64% 4.92% 5.14%

Notes:
There were no changes in benefit terms.  However, the following changes in assumptions
were modified as of the June 30, 2017 valuation:
  The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.5% to 6.25%.
  The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.5% to 2.3%.
  Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4% to 2%.

Contractually required employer contributions exclude the portion of contributions paid to CERS but 
allocated to the pension fund of the CERS.  The above contributions only include those contributions 
allocated directly to the CERS OPEB fund.

The District's covered payroll reported above is payroll for the District's corresponding fiscal year and differs
 from the covered payroll reported on the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability.  

The above schedule will present 10 years of historical data, once available.
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF SHARED COSTS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

______

INDIRECT EXPENDITURES:
Salaries 139,931$     
Fringe benefits 77,645         
Travel 6,413           
Legal and accounting 20,090         
Equipment, leases, depreciation and amortization 60,892         
Office expense 6,465           
Postage 2,034           
Telephone and utilities 27,604         
Committee meetings 3,113           
Dues, fees and subscriptions 13,667         
Insurance 23,571         
Interest 44,975         
Repairs and maintenance 27,002         
Contract services 14,790         
Other 5,542           

    Total 473,734$     

ALLOCATION OF SHARED COSTS:
Joint Funding Administration 88,677$       
Aging programs 179,835
Hazard mitigation 31,165         
Participant Directed Services Program 96,349         
Traditional Case Management 8,422           
KYTC roadway and operations 3,104           
KY Infrastructure Authority 22,744         
Transportation planning 19,461         
Revolving loan program 2,903           
Performance contracts 21,074         

    Total 473,734$     
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES COMPARED TO BUDGET

JOINT FUNDING ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM

for the year ending June 30, 2018

______

Over Questioned
(Under) Costs

Budget Direct Indirect Total Budget (Ref.)

Revenues
    Federal Funds 135,342$ 135,342$   -$            
    State Funds 134,022   87,843       (46,179)       
    Local Funds -           14,639       14,639         

269,364   237,824     (31,540)       

Expenses

Community & Economic
    Planning & Development 120 87,500     58,434     29,104     87,538       38                

Community Development
    Block Grant 125 18,584     11,799     7,108       18,907       323              

ARC Planning 130 112,100   69,832     40,693     110,525     (1,575)         

Management Assistance 140 25,590     3,754       5,375       9,129         (16,460)       

Program Administration 150 25,590     5,328       6,396       11,724       (13,866)       -              

269,364   149,147   88,677     237,824     (31,540)       -$            

Revenues over Expenses -$         -$           -$            
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF COMPLETED GRANT AREA AGENCY ON AGING

for the year ended June 30, 2018

______

Aging Support Cong. H.D Health
Adminis- Services Ombuds- Meals Meals Prevention Caregiver Ombuds- Elder

tration B mans - B C-1 C-2 D E man - VII Abuse VII

Revenues
    Federal grant -$             58,643$    14,800$     135,978$  80,548$  9,439$    40,875$  2,538$    1,539$    
    State grant -               37,290      -                 21,997      53,965    -              14,722    -$        -          
    Local     -               23,867      -                 26,750      71,963    -              -              448         272         
    Program income -               1,444        -                 16,996      1,106      -              -              -              -              
    Local funds applied -               -               -                 5,614        5,706      504         -              -              -              

        Total revenues -               121,244    14,800       207,335    213,288  9,943      55,597    2,986      1,811      

Expenses
Direct expenses:
    Salaries 40,649     7,400        -                 25,302      18,793    4,340      3,507      -              -              
    Fringe benefits 25,475     1,733        -                 2,594        1,923      1,517      2,650      -              -              
    Travel 1,501       45             -                 20             71           3             318         -              -              
    Contracts 68            84,137      14,800       131,841    157,714  1,742      2,751      2,986      1,811      
    Other 13,201     -               -                 2,681        2,787      -              26,086    -              -              

        Total direct expenses 80,894     93,315      14,800       162,438    181,288  7,602      35,312    2,986      1,811      

    Shared costs 40,560     5,602        -                 17,111      12,707    3,593      3,777      -              -              

        Total expenses 121,454   98,917      14,800       179,549    193,995  11,195    39,089    2,986      1,811      

Intrafund transfers in (out) 121,454   (22,327)    -                 (27,786)     (19,293)   1,252      (16,508)   -              -              

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES -$             -$             -$               -$              -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF COMPLETED GRANT AREA AGENCY ON AGING

for the year ended June 30, 2018

______

Personal      Improving
Adminis- Social Care Medicaid LTC Arthritis

tration Services Program NSIP ADRC SHIP Ombudsman Outcomes

Revenues
    Federal grant -$               -$             -$              27,822$    5,040$    12,125$    -$                 1,875$        
    State grant 44,834       315,830    266,261    -                5,040      -                29,323         -                  
    Local     -                 33,293      -                -                -             -                -                   -                  
    Program income -                 613           -                -                -             -                -                   -                  
    Local funds applied -                 -               -                -                -             -                -                   -                  

        Total revenues 44,834       349,736    266,261    27,822      10,080    12,125      29,323         1,875          

Expenses
Direct expenses:
    Salaries 5,580         92,593      -                -                3,503      2,528        -                   -                  
    Fringe benefits 3,750         35,493      -                -                2,462      1,544        -                   -                  
    Travel -                 18,261      -                -                -             263           -                   -                  
    Contracts -                 80,453      239,635    27,822      970         4,587        28,377         -                  
    Other costs -                 38,968      -                -                -         31             946              -                  

        Total direct expenses 9,330         265,768    239,635    27,822      6,935      8,953        29,323         -                  

    Shared costs 5,723         78,567      -                -                3,659      2,498        -                   -                  

        Total expenses 15,053       344,335    239,635    27,822      10,594    11,451      29,323         -                  

Intrafund transfers in (out) (29,781)      (5,401)      (26,626)     -                514         (674)          -                   (1,875)         

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES -$               -$             -$              -$              -$           -$              -$                 -$                

Homecare
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF COMPLETED GRANT AREA AGENCY ON AGING

for the year ended June 30, 2018

______

     Area Agency
Senior Non-Medicaid on Aging

MIPPAA Centers ADRC Totals

Revenues
    Federal grant 15,844$   -$               -$                  407,066$      
    State grant -               -                 -                    789,262        
    Local     -               -                 -                    156,593        
    Program income -               -                 -                    20,159          
    Local funds applied -               -                 -                    11,824          

        Total revenues 15,844     -                 -                    1,384,904     

Expenses
Direct expenses:
    Salaries 2,330       -                 3,491            210,016        
    Fringe benefits 1,412       -                 2,611            83,164          
    Travel 185          -                 -                    20,667          
    Contracts 2,403       -                 2,295            784,392        
    Other costs 7,219       22,625       1,547            116,091        

        Total direct expenses 13,549     22,625       9,944            1,214,330     

    Shared costs 2,295       -                 3,743            179,835        

        Total expenses 15,844     22,625       13,687          1,394,165     

Intrafund transfers -               22,625       13,687          9,261            

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES -$             -$               -$                  -$              
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

PARTICIPANT DIRECTED SERVICES (PDS) PROGRAM
(FORMERLY THE CDO PROGRAM)

for the year ended June 30, 2018
______

Participant Traditional
Directed Case PDS
Services Management Totals

Revenues
    Service fees 303,908$  29,900$       333,808$   

        Total revenues 303,908    29,900         333,808     

Expenses

  Direct expenses:

    Salaries 107,059    8,470           115,529     
    Fringe benefits 50,018      5,259           55,277       
    Travel 7,022        1,909           8,931         
    Other 5,842        106              5,948         

        Total direct expenses 169,941    15,744         185,685     

    Shared costs 96,350      8,421           104,771     

        Total expenses 266,291    24,165         290,456     

Intrafund transfers (9,261)       -                   (9,261)       

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

  (UNDER) EXPENSES 28,356$    5,735$         34,091$     

-38-



GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY PROGRAM AND SUPPORTING SERVICES - OTHER GRANTS 

for the year ended June 30, 2018

_____

KYTC
Roadway KY KYTC
Centerline Infrastructure Trans- Public Trans- Hazard

Data Authority portation portation Mitigation Totals
Revenues
    Federal grant -$           -$                  -$                  73,000$         71,096$         144,096$ 
    State grant -                 53,917           66,963           -                    11,375           132,255   
    Local / service fees 8,293         -                    -                    -                    -                    8,293       
    Program income -                 -                    -                    -                    -                    -               
    Local funds applied -                 -                    -                    -                    -                    -               

            Total revenues 8,293         53,917           66,963           73,000           82,471           284,644   

Expenses
    Direct expenses:
        Salaries 3,148         23,272           20,207           -                    31,764           78,391     
        Fringe benefits 1,912         13,807           11,520           -                    19,044           46,283     
        Travel 138            1,887             536                -                    236                2,797       
        Contracts -                 -                    -                    -                    -                    -               
        Other -                 686                464                73,000           262                74,412     

            Total direct expenses 5,198         39,652           32,727           73,000           51,306           201,883   

    Shared costs 3,104         22,744           19,461           -                    31,165           76,474     

            Total expenses 8,302         62,396           52,188           73,000           82,471           278,357   

Intrafund transfers -                 -                    7,440             -                    -                    7,440       

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
    (UNDER) EXPENSES (9)$             (8,479)$         22,215$         -$                  -$                  13,727$   
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY PROGRAM AND SUPPORTING SERVICES

for the year ended June 30, 2018

______

Area Agency Other Revolving Admin-

JFA on Aging Grants Loan NHPLP Performance PDS istrative Local

Totals Totals Totals Program Grants Contracts Totals Expense Operations Totals

Revenues
    Federal grant 135,342$  407,066$      144,096$   -$               -$             -$              -$            -$              -$           686,504$     
    State grant 87,843      789,262        132,255     -                 -               52,677       -          -                -             1,062,037    
    Local / service fees -                156,593        8,293         305            51            -                333,808  -                11,985       511,035       
    Program Income -                20,159          -                 9,420         1,098       -                -              -                48,991       79,668         
    Local funds applied 14,639      11,824          -                 -                 -               -                -              -                (26,463)      -               

            Total revenues 237,824    1,384,904     284,644     9,725         1,149       52,677       333,808  -                34,513       2,339,244    

Expenses
    Direct expenses:
        Salaries 92,059      210,016        78,391       2,904         -               21,579       115,529  139,931    -                 660,409       
        Fringe benefits 52,508      83,164          46,283       1,829         -               12,778       55,277    77,645      206,840     536,324       
        Travel 3,599        20,667          2,797         -                 -               382            8,931      6,413        -                 42,789         
        Contracts -                784,392        -                 -                 -               -                -              14,790      -                 799,182       
        Other 981           116,091        74,412       -                 5,245       4,747         5,948      234,955    7,823         450,202       

            Total direct expenses 149,147    1,214,330     201,883     4,733         5,245       39,486       185,685  473,734    214,663     2,488,906    

    Shared costs 88,677      179,835        76,474       2,903         -           21,074       104,771  (473,734)   -             -               

            Total expenses 237,824    1,394,165     278,357     7,636         5,245       60,560       290,456  -                214,663     2,488,906    

Intrafund transfers -                9,261            7,440         -                 -               -                (9,261)     -                (7,440)        -                   

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

    (UNDER) EXPENSES -$          -$             13,727$     2,089$       (4,096)$    (7,883)$     34,091$  -$          (187,590)$  (149,662)$    
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

_____

Federal Pass/Through Passed 
CFDA Contract Through to

GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Department of Commerce
1.  Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC)

Direct award
JFA-ARC Planning 23.009   PON2 725 1800000290 -$               56,050$         

Total ARC -                 56,050          

Economic Development Administration
1.  Passed through State (DLG) (note 1)

JFA-Community and Economic Assistance 11.302   PON2 725 1800000290 -                 70,000          

2.  Economic Development Administration

Revolving Loan Program (note 2) 11.307   N/A -                 521,549         

Total EDA -                 591,549         

U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)
Passed through State (DLG)

JFA- CDBG 14.228   PON2 725 1800000290 -                 9,292            

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
Passed through State (CFHS) (note 3)

Title III B Support Services 93.044   PON2 725 1700002624 58,643            58,643          
Title III B Ombudsman 93.044   PON2 725 1700002624 14,800            14,800          
Title III C1 Congregate Meals 93.045   PON2 725 1700002624 94,772            135,978         
Title III C2 Home Delivered Meals 93.045   PON2 725 1700002624 80,548            80,548          
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053   PON2 725 1800000566 766                27,822          

Aging cluster 249,529          317,791         

Title VII Elder Abuse 93.041   PON2 725 1700002626 1,539              1,539            
Title VII Ombudsman 93.042   PON2 725 1700002626 2,538              2,538            
Title III D Aging Program Preventive Health 93.043   PON2 725 1700002624 -                 9,439            
Title III E Family Caregiver 93.052   PON2 725 1700002624 -                 40,875          

ACA - MIPPA 93.071   PON2 725 1800000579 2,403              15,844          
Aging and Disability Resource Center (ADRC) 93.778   PON2 725 1700002631 -                 5,040            
CMS SHIP 93.324   PON2 725 1700002623 -                 12,125          
Improving Arthritis Outcomes 93.945   PON2 725 1700002633 -                 1,875            

Total HHS 256,009          407,066         

Subtotal federal awards 256,009$        1,063,957$    

Notes:
1) The Joint Funding Administration (JFA) program, which is reported under various federal agencies, is passed

through the Commonwealth of Kentucky, Department of Local Government (DLG).
2) At June 30, 2018, the District had loans outstanding in the amount of $304,320 with an allowance for doubtful 

accounts of $37,489 under the Title IX-RLF loan program.  The revolving loan federal expenditures is 
calculated by taking the current year loan balance of $304,320, plus the cash balance of $383,790, plus the
current year administrative expenditures of $7,636, plus no loans were written off in the current year, and 
then multiplying this total by the Federal share of approximately 75% which equals $521,549.

3) The Health and Human Services programs are passed through from the Commonwealth of Kentucky,
Cabinet for Health and Family Services, Department for Aging and Independent Living (CHFS).

Basis of Presentation
   The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the
   Gateway Area Development District and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
   Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) .  Therefore, some amounts presented  in, or used 
  in the preparation of, the basic financial statements may differ from these numbers.

Indirect Cost Rates
The Gateway Area Development District did not elect to use the 10 percent de minimis  cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance . 
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended June 30, 2018

_____

Federal Pass/Through Passed 
CFDA Contract Through to

GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

Subtotal federal awards from previous page 256,009$        1,063,957$       

U.S. Department of Transportation

Passed through State (KYTC) (note 4)

Public Transportation Grant 20.513   KY-2016-004-01 -                  73,000              

Total DOL -                  73,000              

U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS)

Passed through MCFC (note 5) 

Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039   PON2 095 1700000330 -                  71,096              

Total DHS -                  71,096              

Total federal awards 256,009          1,208,053         
Less:  Revolving loan programs that do not reflect current year activity -                  (521,549)           

Total federal awards reported in the financial statements 256,009$        686,504$          

Notes:
4) The Department of Transportation programs are passed through from the Commonwealth of Kentucky,

Transportation Cabinet (KYTC).
5) The Department of Homeland Security program was passed through from Montgomery County

Fiscal Court (MCFC).

Basis of Presentation
   The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the
   Gateway Area Development District and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
   Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) .  Therefore, some amounts presented  in, or used 
  in the preparation of, the basic financial statements may differ from these numbers.

Indirect Cost Rates
The Gateway Area Development District did not elect to use the 10 percent de minimis  cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance . 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Gateway Area Development District
Morehead, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Gateway Area 
Development District (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated September 28, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

RFH, PLLC
Lexington, Kentucky
September 28, 2018

-44-



Members American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
and Kentucky Society of Certified Public Accountants 

RFH, PLLC  •  300 West Vine Street, Suite 800  •  Lexington, Kentucky 40507-1812 
Phone: 859-231-1800  •  Fax: 859-422-1800  •  Toll-Free: 1-800-342-7299                                                  www.rfhcpas.com 

	

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Board of Directors
Gateway Area Development District
Morehead, Kentucky

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Gateway Area Development District’s (the District) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The 
District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Gateway Area Development District, complied, in all material respects, with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

RFH, PLLC
Lexington, Kentucky 
September 28, 2018
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GATEWAY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

for the year ended June 30, 2018
_____

I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements:
     Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
     Material weaknesses identified    Yes X No
     Significant deficiencies identified that are not

     considered to be material weaknesses    Yes X None reported

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted    Yes X No

Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
      Material weaknesses identified   Yes X No
      Significant deficiencies identified that are not
        considered to be material weaknesses    Yes X None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:
      Unmodified for all major programs.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?    Yes X No

Major Programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.044, 93.045, 93.053 Aging Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs: $   750,000

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? X Yes No

II. FINDINGS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NONE

III. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS
NONE

IV. PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
NONE
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